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Those who came to the Wabash Valley in the

early 1800s faced many risks but, as the War of 1812
ended and the Indians were defeated at the Battle of the
Thames in 1813, life became more tolerable. Adventur-
ers moved in to take advantage of land sales as the fed-
eral government negotiated land from the Indians. Wil-
liam Digby was one of these persons. He was born in
Newport, Kentucky in 1802, just across the Ohio River
from Cincinnati. He moved to Ohio and as a young man
began plying the rivers and streams of western Indiana.
His travels as a trader along the Wabash gave him fa-
miliarity with the navigation of its waters.

William, a gambler and speculator, remaining sin-
gle throughout his life, was able to spend his time ex-
ploring the rivers with an eye to making economic gain.
Indiana had become a state in December, 1816, and
new territory was continually being added for develop-
ment by treaty negotiations with the Miami and Pot-
tawattomi. The Treaty of St. Mary’s Ohio in 1818, ne-
gotiated by Judge Benjamin Parke and General Lewis
Cass, opened up much of the remaining Indian lands
south of the Wabash River to settlement. This was the
so called “New Purchase” and eventually resulted in 37
new counties being formed. In 1820 the Delaware Indi-
ans, moving west, vacated the central portion of the
state, allowing more settlers to move in.

In the fall of 1824 Indiana’s capital was moved
from Corydon to the banks of Fall Creek. This town was
named Indianapolis. A land office was opened at Craw-
fordsville that same year. It was at this office with the
first land sale on December 24, 1824, that William
Digby, age 22, filed a claim for the site that was to be-
come Lafayette. He purchased 84 acres for which he
paid $231.63. The land lay on the east side of the Wa-

bash just a few miles south of the ferry operated by
John Davis and the old French trading post of Peter Lon-
glois. Lafayette’s Ninth Street today leads north out of
town toward Davis Ferry Rd and Davis Ferry Park, just
south of Battle Ground.

Why did Digby chose this site.? It was primarily
because he thought that this would be the head of
steamboat navigation on the Wabash. Steamboats had
made it as far as Terre Haute by 1823. Based on naviga-
tional improvements the state was then making on the
river Digby felt that the steamboats could come further
up stream. Digby was strictly investing for gain. He
employed a Crawfordsville inn keeper, Robert Johnson,
to accompany him in the spring of 1825 and together
they laid out the initial city of Lafayette. It consisted of
140 lots along the Wabash from today’s South St to
North St and east to 6% St, which he called Missouri St.
His public square was located where the courthouse is
today.

Three days after establishing the town he sold
most of his holdings to Samuel Sargeant. Digby re-
tained 20 acres, a ferry landing and a small plot in the
town. The selling price was $240. Sargeant in turn
wanted to enhance the likelihood that the town would
become a county seat so he sold 5/8ths of the odd
numbered lots to leading businessmen in Crawfords-
ville - Isaac C. Elston, John Wilson and Jonathan W.

Powers - for $130. These too were speculator/
investors. Elston went on in 1832 to layout Michigan
City, IN.

Why did Digby choose the name Lafayette for
his new town? We must remember that his objective
was to make a profit so he wanted to promote the site.
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